
For disability accommodation contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD 
relay service, dial (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400 
 

Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, May 28, 2013                                                                               City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Council will interview Arts & Planning Commission applicants beginning at 6:00 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• King County Metro Proposed Cuts - Andrew Hastings, 20 minutes 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  
C-2. Appoint Delegate(s) for Assoc. of Washington Cities Annual Business Meeting (Council) 
C-3. Covington Community Sports Agreement to Use Kent School District Facilities (Patterson) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  April 11 and May 9 meetings. 
• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  May 9 meeting. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  May 15 meeting. 
• Planning Chair Daniel Key:  May 2 meeting; May 16 canceled. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  April 25 and May 23 meetings. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
• Potential Litigation (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)) 
• Real Estate Acquisition (RCW 42.30.110(1) (c)) 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointment to Arts Commission (Council) 
2. Consider Appointment to Planning Commission (Council) 
3. Discuss Field Use Fees (Thomas) 
4. Resolution in Strong Support of a 2013 Transportation Investment Package (Matheson) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
  
ADJOURN  

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  May 28, 2013 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #29423—29495, in the Amount of $242,681.96, Dated May 
13, 2013; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1001269919-1001269938 Inclusive, Plus Employee 
Direct Deposits in the Amount of $158,318.85, Dated May 24, 2013. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment:  Vouchers #29423—29495, in the 
Amount of $242,681.96, Dated May 13, 2013; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1001269919-1001269938 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $158,318.85, Dated May 24, 2013. 
 
 

 

1 of 31



2 of 31



3 of 31



4 of 31



5 of 31



6 of 31



7 of 31



8 of 31



9 of 31



10 of 31



11 of 31



12 of 31



13 of 31



14 of 31



15 of 31



  

Consent Agenda Item C-2  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: May 28, 2013   
 
SUBJECT:   APPOINT VOTING DELEGATES FOR THE 2013 ASSOCIATION OF 

WASHINGTON CITIES ANNUAL BUSINESS MEETING. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): None 

 
PREPARED BY: Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The Association of Washington Cities (AWC) will hold its annual conference June 25 through 
28 this year in Tri-Cities, Washington.  Each city selects up to three delegates to vote on AWC 
policy at the annual business meeting held during the conference.  Also at the annual business 
meeting: 
 

• You elect your board of directors – the people who guide your association’s activities.  
• You debate the hot issues that impact cities.  
• Hear about AWC’s legislative work and what happened during the 2013 legislative 

session directly from AWC’s lobbyists. Find out how it impacts your city and what bills 
survived.  

 
Delegate selections need to be sent to AWC by June 20, 2013. Mayor Harto and City Manager 
Derek Matheson are registered to attend the conference. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
Not Applicable 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____Ordinance  _____ Resolution       X     Motion               Other  
 
 

Councilmember ___________ moves, and Councilmember _________________ 
seconds to appoint Mayor Harto and Derek Matheson as the delegates to 
represent the City of Covington at the 2013 Association of Washington Cities 
Annual Business Meeting. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 

 

16 of 31



Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: May 28, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY AND COVINGTON COMMUNITY SPORTS, INC., 
(CCS) FOR CCS’S USE OF KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT RECREATIONAL 
FACILITIES  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. Proposed Agreement with Covington Community Sports, Inc. for use of Kent School 
District recreational facilities 

 
PREPARED BY:  Pat Patterson, Recreation Manager 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Covington Community Sports, Inc. (CCS) provides a valuable service to the residents of 
Covington.  In 2012, Covington Community Sports had 2,781 registered participants ages 2-14.  
This is a 5.8% increase from 2,628 in 2011.  At the midway point of 2013, CCS had 1,504 
registered participants.  This is a decrease of 4.1% from 1,569 participants for the same period in 
2012.  In 2012, CCS issued $6,764 in program registration scholarships to 72 participants, a 
50.4% increase from $4,497 to 122 participants in 2011.  At the midway point of 2013, CCS 
issued $1,618 to 40 participants in registration scholarships compared to $3,024 to 60 
participants for the same period in 2012. 
 
Covington Community Sports presented their annual report to the Parks and Recreation 
Commission on May 15, 2013.  The Commission supports the renewal of the proposed 
agreement.   
 
Staff is seeking Council approval for the City Manager to renew the City’s Agreement with 
Covington Community Sports for scheduling and use of Kent School District facilities.  This 
Agreement is an update of the Agreement that the City has had with Covington Community 
Sports since 2007 for the same purpose.  The Agreement calls for an annual review by Council.   
 
ALTERNATIVES:  None Submitted 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION: _____Ordinance           Resolution     X    Motion             Other 
 

Councilmember ___________ moves and Councilmember 
___________________ seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute an 
Agreement between the City of Covington and Covington Community Sports, 
Inc., (CCS) for CCS’s use of Kent School District Recreational Facilities.  

 
REVIEWED BY: City Manager, City Attorney, Parks & Recreation Director, Finance Director 

17 of 31



 1 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF COVINGTON AND 
COVINGTON COMMUNITY SPORTS, INCORPORATED 

 
     THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ninth day of June, 2013, by 
and between the City of Covington, a Washington State municipal corporation 
(the “City”) and Covington Community Sports, Incorporated (“CCS”), a nonprofit 
corporation. 
 
     Whereas, the Kent School District #415 (the “District”) has made various 
school facilities available to the City for community recreation purposes; and 
 
     Whereas, CCS desires to provide recreational programs to the Covington area; 
and 
 
     Whereas primary access by CCS to the District recreational facilities will 
facilitate the provision of recreational activities by CCS; 
 
     Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual agreement by the parties to the 
following conditions and covenants, and to promote the stated purposes of this 
Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Purpose.  The purpose of this Agreement is to ensure access to Kent 
School District recreational facilities by CCS for the purpose of operating 
and executing recreational programs that primarily benefit children of 
primary and secondary school age.  

 
2.  Term.  The term of this Agreement shall be for one (1) calendar year 

from the date of execution, subject to the right of the City to revoke this 
Agreement upon written notice given to CCS sixty (60) days prior to the 
termination date.  This Agreement shall be subject to annual review by 
the City Council and, upon Council finding satisfactory performance, the 
Agreement shall be automatically renewed for one (1) calendar year 
unless a party provides written notice within thirty (30) days of the end of 
a term of its intent to terminate this Agreement.     

 
3. Use of Facilities.  CCS shall have the first right to use of the District 

facilities pursuant to the provisions of the agreement between the City and 
the District, provided that the City retains the right to utilize the subject 
facilities at any time not utilized by CCS and may pre-empt CCS’ use 
upon no less than 72 hours advance notification.  In the event that a CCS 
request for facility use conflicts with an existing City sponsored event or 
program, the existing event or program will retain the first right to use of 
the District facility.  The City reserves the right to determine all usage 
priority. 

 

ATTACHMENT 1

18 of 31



 2 

4. Application for Use of Facilities.  CCS agrees to make application for, 
and to use the facilities in full compliance with the rules, regulations and 
laws of the District, the Kent School Board and the State of Washington.  
Requests for use of District facilities shall be made directly to the District.  
Copies of all requests shall be sent to the City. 

 
5. Staffing.  CCS agrees to ensure that adequate personnel, which may 

include adult volunteers, are provided to supervise all recreation activities 
which take place at District facilities. 

 
6. Liability.  CCS acknowledges that the District requires a $10,000,000 

policy of commercial general liability insurance and that the District may, 
on a case by case basis, authorize use of the facility with an insurance 
policy of less than $10,000,000.  For that reason, this Agreement shall 
have no force and effect until such time as CCS has obtained written 
authorization from the District for CCS’ use of their facilities based upon 
an insurance policy in the amount as approved by the District.  CCS 
currently carries $1,000,000 liability insurance for each occurrence and 
2,000,000 general aggregate insurance.  The City is named as an 
additional insured on all policies of insurance. 

 
7. Indemnification.  CCS indemnifies and holds the City, its officers, council 

members, agents and employees harmless from any liability, claim, cause 
of action, damages or payments arising from or out of or in connection 
with the use by CCS, its agents, employees, or volunteers of the real 
property, facilities, or personal property of the District and/or the City 
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

 
8. Integration.  This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the 

parties as to the subject matter herein.  This Agreement supersedes any 
and all prior agreements and understandings between the parties. 

 
9. Modification.  No addition, modification, amendment or waiver of any 

provision of this Agreement shall be effective unless made in writing and 
subscribed to by the parties hereof. 

 
                  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to       

be executed. 
 
            CITY OF COVINGTON   COVINGTON COMMUNITY SPORTS 
 
By: __________________________  By: ________________________________ 
                  City Manager     President 
 
Attest: ___________________________ Attest: ______________________________ 
                 City Clerk      Vice President 

19 of 31



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: May 28, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:   CONSIDER APPOINTMENT TO OPENING ON THE ARTS COMMISSION  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Pat Patterson, Recreation Manager 
    Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director 
            
ATTACHMENTS:  See Interview Schedule and Application provided separately. 

 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  There is currently one replacement position open for a person living or 
working within Covington city limits with a term ending May 31, 2014.  One application has 
been received. 
 

Aunna Moriarty Youth Resides Inside 
 
This replacement position may be held by an adult or youth living or working within Covington 
city limits.  This applicant fulfills those requirements.  Youth commissioners serve one-year 
terms. 
 
NOTE:  Ordinance No. 11-10. Membership, terms, residence requirements:  “The Arts 
Commission shall consist of seven members appointed by the City Council, two of which may be 
youth members who must be between the ages of 14 and 18 at the start of their terms.  Up to two 
of the members may reside outside the City, but those outside must reside within a three-mile 
radius of the City limits. The remaining five members must work or reside within the City 
limits.” 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants to be 
considered for the open position. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill open Position No. 4 on the Arts 
Commission with a term expiring May 31, 2014. 
 

REVIEWED BY: Derek Matheson, City Manager  
 Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
 Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director 
 Pat Patterson, Recreation Manager 

20 of 31



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  May 28, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:   CONSIDER APPOINTMENT TO REPLACEMENT POSITION ON THE 

PLANNING COMMISSION  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
              
ATTACHMENTS:  See Interview Schedule and Applications provided separately. 

 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk  
 
EXPLANATION:   

 One replacement position open that may be filled by an applicant that lives inside or 
outside the city limits (within the three-mile radius) 

 There are two applicants below: 
 
NAME OF APPLICANT     INSIDE OR OUTSIDE  
 
Gloria Foss (interviewed May 28)                Resides Outside Covington  
 
Jennifer Gilbert-Smith (interviewed May 28)           Resides Outside Covington 
 
NOTE:  Ordinance No. 25-01 “Membership in the Planning Commission shall be limited to 
residents within the City; provided, however, at any given time the commission may consist of a 
maximum of two members who reside outside the City, but within a three-mile radius of the City 
limits.  No member shall serve longer than two consecutive terms.”   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants to be 
considered for the replacement position.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motions            Other  

 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint ________________ to fill a replacement position on the 
Planning Commission with a term expiring August 31, 2015. 
 

REVIEWED BY: Derek Matheson, City Manager  
 Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
 Richard Hart, Community Development Director 

21 of 31



Agenda Item 3  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: May 28, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  RESOLUTION IN STRONG SUPPORT OF A 2013 TRANSPORTATION 

INVESTMENT PACKAGE 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager                                      
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Resolution in Strong Support of a 2013 Transportation Investment Package 
2. AWC Fact Sheet: “Transportation Revenue Package 2013” 

 
PREPARED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The Washington State Legislature is considering a 12-year, $9.5 billion package of transportation 
infrastructure investments.  The package includes a direct gas-tax distribution to local 
governments and the opportunity to secure funding for State Route 516 from Jenkins Creek to 
185th Avenue Southeast.   
 
The City Council’s 2013 Legislative Agenda states: 
 

Infrastructure Funding: Support increased funding for cities’ infrastructure design and 
construction needs, including but not limited to the surface transportation program 
(MAP-21) and Land & Water Conservation Fund (LWCF) at the federal level; and the 
Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program (WWRP), Public Works Trust Fund 
(PWTF), street utility concept, and transportation-package discussions at the state level. 

 
State Route 516 funding is not possible without a robust transportation investment package, and 
such a package is consistent with the council’s legislative agenda.  Therefore, staff and the city’s 
lobbyist recommend that the council join other councils and adopt a resolution in strong support 
of a 2013 Transportation Investment Package. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Do not adopt a resolution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Staff time 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance     X  Resolution         Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to adopt a resolution in strong support of a 2013 Transportation 
Investment Package. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Attorney; Finance Director. 

22 of 31



RESOLUTION NO. 13-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, IN 
STRONG SUPPORT OF A 2013 TRANSPORTATION 
INVESTMENT PACKAGE 

  
 

WHEREAS, a healthy transportation system is a critical foundation of our state and local 

economies and our quality of life, as well as our global position as the nation’s most trade-

dependent state; and 

WHEREAS, Washington state’s transportation system is suffering from disrepair, with a 

backlog of maintenance and preservation needs, and data showing that without any new 

investments, more than half the pavement on our state roads and highways will be in poor 

condition by 2023; and 

WHEREAS, failing roads and bridges, congested highway corridors, and bottlenecked 

interchanges undermine the mobility of vehicles, buses, and freight-carriers to transport people 

and goods; and 

WHEREAS, the Connecting Washington Task Force released a report in early 2012, 

identifying $50 billion in unfunded transportation needs and recommending an investment of $21 

billion in state funding during the next 10 years for maintenance, preservation, and strategic 

investments; and 

 WHEREAS, investing in maintaining and upgrading our transportation system is a 

positive step the Legislature can take to catalyze construction jobs, enhance freight mobility for 

our Ports, and create a pathway for retaining and growing new jobs for key industry sectors; and 

ATTACHMENT 1

23 of 31



WHEREAS, through SHB 1954, SHB 1955 and related bills, the 2013 Washington State 

Legislature is considering a 12-year, $9.5 billion package of transportation infrastructure 

investments; and 

WHEREAS, this package provides critical funding for key highway corridor projects 

throughout the state, including the opportunity to secure funding for State Route 516 from 

Jenkins Creek to 185th Avenue Southeast; and 

WHEREAS, the transportation package also provides a direct gas tax distribution that 

will provide new funding each year for the City of Covington to maintain local roadways and 

arterials and to leverage existing funding; and 

WHEREAS, the package also includes local transportation financing options that cities 

and counties can submit to their voters for transportation improvements in their communities; 

and 

WHEREAS, the transportation package additionally invests in grant programs that are 

vital for cities and counties, including the Transportation Investment Board (TIB), the Freight 

Mobility Strategic Investment Board (FMSIB), “Complete Streets,” Safe Routes to Schools, and 

Bicycle-Pedestrian Safety; and 

WHEREAS, the package also includes direct funding allocations for transit agencies, 

including King County Metro Transit, that would otherwise have to make drastic cuts in routes 

which carry people to work sites and serve local communities; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Covington strongly encourages the Washington State Legislature 

to enact a balanced transportation investment package, in Olympia, during the Special Session to 

create jobs, relieve congestion, support our businesses, and maintain our quality of life. 

24 of 31



BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Covington, King County, 

Washington, as follows: 

Section 1.  The Covington City Council takes an official position in strong support of a 

comprehensive transportation investment package, including direct funding and funding options 

for local governments. 

Section 2.  The Covington City Council strongly encourages lawmakers to approve and 

enact this package in Olympia. 

 PASSED in open and regular session on this 28th day of May, 2013.  

        
 
       ___________________________________ 
       MARGARET HARTO, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTESTED: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 

25 of 31



AWC contacts
Alison Hellberg, alisonh@awcnet.org 
Dave Catterson, davec@awcnet.org

In early 2012, the Connecting Washington Task Force, 
convened by Governor Gregoire, released a report 
identifying $50 billion in transportation needs and 
recommended “an investment of $21 billion in state funding 
during the next ten years to preserve the transportation 
system and make strategic investments in the corridors that 
hold the key to job creation and economic growth.”

The last state investments made in transportation were the 
“Nickel” package in 2003 and the Transportation Partnership 
Act in 2005. Many of those projects are complete, or 
close to complete, and were debt-financed over a 25-year 
period. This means the only way to continue building and 
maintaining transportation systems in this state is through 
new funding.

Maintain what we have
We have a critical backlog of highway maintenance and 
preservation needs. By 2023, without any new investments, 
more than half of the pavement on our state roads and 
highways will be in poor or very poor condition and only 11 
percent will be in good or very good condition.

Local streets are deteriorating as well. With tight budgets, 
many cities have made the difficult decision to defer street 
maintenance in order to maintain funding for other core 
services such as public safety.

Protect jobs and our economy
Improving and maintaining streets, highways and bridges is 
crucial for moving people and freight and for ensuring our 
economic future. We must make targeted investments along 
our State’s major freight corridors.

Support transit
Across Washington State, over 217 million passenger trips 
are provided annually on buses, paratransit, vanpools, 
and light and commuter rail. Yet as demand grows transit 
funding has been severely affected by the downturn in the 
economy.

Proposed solution
The Connecting Washington package (HB 1954/HB 1955) 
proposed by House Transportation Chair Judy Clibborn would 
make a significant down payment on the problem. The $9.5 
billion, 12-year package would make key investments in 
maintenance and preservation of our roads, provide funding 
for key projects to improve freight mobility and relieve 

M a y  2 0 1 3

Association of Washington Cities • 1076 Franklin St SE, Olympia, WA 98501 • awcnet.org

Transportation Revenue 
Package 2013

traffic congestion, and provide direct funding and funding 
options to local governments to protect transit service, 
maintain and improve local roads, and make critical safety 
improvements to bicycle and pedestrian facilities.

Of particular interest to cities
Along with the projects important to many cities, several 
parts of the proposal could provide additional transportation 
dollars directly to cities or transit providers that serve 
cities.

The proposal increases the gas tax by 10 cents (five cents in 
the first year, three cents the second year and two cents in 
the third year) and distributes one cent of that to cities and 
counties (1/2 cent each). To see a projection of how much 
your city would receive, click here.

The proposal includes authority for transportation benefit 
districts (TBDs) to increase the motor vehicle fee up to $40 
councilmanically. (To learn more about TBDs, click here).

Also included are new funding options for some of the 
hardest hit transit systems including up to 0.3% sales tax 
increase, upon approval of voters, for Community Transit 
(Snohomish County), and up to 1.5% MVET, upon approval of 
voters, for King County Metro.

New funding for a “Complete Streets” grant program, which 
would provide grants aimed at construction projects that 
improve mobility for all users, including transit riders, 
cyclists, pedestrians and motorists.

Additional funding for the Safe Routes to Schools program is 
included. Many cities use these grants to improve sidewalks 
and other facilities near local schools.

New funding for a specific list of bicycle/pedestrian safety 
projects as well as a bicycle/pedestrian project grant 
program is included.

The package does include continued funding, but no new 
additional revenues, for the Transportation Improvement 
Board and the Freight Mobility Strategic Investment Board.

For a detailed summary of proposed revenues and 
expenditures as well as project lists click here.

ATTACHMENT 2

26 of 31



Agenda Item 4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: May 28, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION ON FIELD USE FEES 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  None 
 
PREPARED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
At the March 23rd and April 23rd meetings City Council was provided a range of possible goals 
and priorities that would guide staff when establishing fees for using the multi-purpose field at 
the newly opened Covington Community Park.  Since this is the city’s first time to manage a 
field we are working hard to get it right but also anticipate that we’ll learn a lot and make 
appropriate adjustments over the next few years.  Based on the discussions in March and April 
staff discerned the following guidance: 
 
• Generate revenue to offset operating and capital costs 
• Use market rate pricing 
• Provide a balance between revenues, affordability and time to various types of users 
• Schedule the field for multiple types of uses, provide a balance among various activities 
• Protect the quality of the turf so it is suitable for multiple types of uses, especially 

community activities 
• Emphasize youth 
• Emphasize soccer 
• Emphasize recreation-level uses 
• Emphasize local users 
• Emphasize KYSA and CCS 
 
There are a few other points that were not discussed last month that we want to make sure are 
included in the scheduling priorities.  The city is the first priority user and the Kent School 
District is the second priority user, per the joint use agreement.  All other users will be scheduled 
based on the guidance above. 
 
We are still seeking guidance on a few items: 
 
• Provide preferential pricing for priority users, e.g. charge higher prices to adult v. youth 

sports or provide flat rate pricing for all users 
• Charge higher prices based on wear and tear on the field or flat rate pricing for all users, e.g. 

charge more for youth premier soccer compared to youth recreation soccer 
 

27 of 31



At this time staff is available to answer further questions about field scheduling priorities and fee 
setting strategies and seeks input from Council to confirm or adjust the guidance outlined above.  
If necessary, staff could provide options and impacts for further discussion in June, which would 
be the final opportunity to provide guidance before the city manager updates the fee schedule, 
also in June.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
This is a discussion item only for which no alternatives are provided. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
This is a discussion item only for which no financial impact is provided. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution        Motion    X   Other 

 
PROVIDE INPUT TO STAFF 

 
REVIEWED BY:  Parks and Recreation Director, City Manager 
 

28 of 31



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  May 28, 2013 
 

 
DISCUSSION OF  

FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 
 
 
 

6:00 p.m. Tuesday, June 11, 2013  
Special Meeting 

Joint Meeting with Parks & Recreation Commission 
 
 

7:00 p.m. Tuesday, June 11, 2013 
 Regular Meeting 

 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

29 of 31



 Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION WITH 

 PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION 
Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Tuesday, June 11, 2013 - 6:00 p.m. 

 
 **Please note meeting start time ** 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The study session is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City 
Council, Commission (if applicable) and city staff regarding policy issues.  Study sessions may 
involve presentations, feedback, brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the 
staff on key policy matters. 
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION TO ORDER  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 
1. Parks Priority Advisory Committee (PPAC) (Thomas) 
2. Progress on PROS Plan Goals (Thomas) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment shall be for the purpose of the Council receiving 
comment from the public and is not intended for conversation or debate.  Public comments shall be limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  If additional time is needed a person may request that the Council place an item on a future agenda as time allows. 
 
ADJOURN      
               
               
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum 
of 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service 800-833-6384 and ask 
the operator to dial 253-480-2400.  
 

*Note* A Regular Council meeting will immediately follow at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

Draft   
as of 5/22/13 

   

 

30 of 31



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, June 11, 2013                                                                           City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                  16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
**Note** A Special Meeting is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m.  

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION  

• Childhood Cancer Awareness Week Proclamation (_____________) 
• Parks & Recreation Month Proclamation (_______________) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  
Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 

 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  May 14, 2013 Joint Meeting with CEDC & Chamber Board; May 14, 2013 

Regular Meeting; and May 28, 2013 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Accept Covington Community Park Fencing Contract (Akramoff) 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Public Testimony on Proposed 2014-2019 Transportation Improvement Program 

(Vondran) 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
2. Discuss Citizen Survey Results (Slate) 
3. Finalize Use of Funds from General Fund (Akramoff) 
4. Code Revisions for Assuming Solid Waste Jurisdiction (Springer/Akramoff) 
5. Town Center Developer Partnerships (RFQ (Matheson) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See notes on Public Comments above 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
  
ADJOURN  
 
For disability accommodations call 253-480-2400 at least 24 hours in advance.  For TDD relay service call (800) 833-6384 and 
ask the operator to dial 253-480-2400.  

 

Draft   
as of 5/22/13 

   

 

31 of 31

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	05-28-13 Special for Interviews & Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, May 28, 2013                                                                               City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent Item C-1 Green Sheet 05-28-2013 Voucher Blue Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent Item C-1 Attachments
	Consent Item C-2 Green Sheet 05-28-13 AWC Voting Delegates Blue Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent Item C-3 Green Sheet 5-28-13 Agenda Bill - Covington Community Sports Agreement
	Consent Agenda Item C-3

	Consent C-3 Attachment 1 5-28-13 CCS Facility Use Agreement
	Agenda Item 1 Blue Sheet 05-28-2013 Arts Commission Appointment
	Agenda Item 1

	Agenda 2 Blue Sheet 05-28-2013 Consider Appointment to Opening on PC
	Agenda Item 2

	Agenda Item 3 Blue Sheet 05-28-13 Transportation Revenue Package
	Agenda Item 3

	Agenda Item 3 Attachment 1
	Agenda Item 3 Attachment 2
	Agenda Item 4 Blue Sheet Field Use Fees Discussion, 2013-5-28
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	06-11-2013 Joint Meeting with P&R Commission.
	Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington
	Tuesday, June 11, 2013 - 6:00 p.m.
	CALL CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION TO ORDER
	ROLL CALL
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA


	06-11-2013 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, June 11, 2013                                                                           City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




